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HMORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Directors present their annual report together with the financial siatements and auditors repor el tha
charitable company for the year 1 Septermber 2020 fo 31 August 2021 The annual report serves the purposss
of both & Trustees’ mpar, and a Directars’ report under company law,

The Trust operates two Church of England acadermies and one community acadamy for pupiis aged 3-11 years,
s&rving communities in South Sunderiand and Harlepool admittng pupils who are wholly or mainky drawn from
tha areas in which the schools are situated. The academies provide education for pupils of different abiibes.
The academies have a curmiculum satisfying the requirerents of Sechion 1: Academies Act 2040 {broad and
batanced curricelum). The academies are at the haart of the communitiss. working closaly in pannership with all

stakeholders and promoting British values

The academies combined pupil capacity s 480 including nursery and had a roll of 459 pupils in the schoo
census on 20 May 2021. Pupils are admitied in accordance with our Admissions Pelicy which s ratited annually
by the Board of Direciors. Management of Admissicns is delegated the Local Governing Body for sach

academy
Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Trust s a company kmied by guarantec and an exempl charity. The chartabie company's mamarandum
and afficles of associgtion are the primary governeng documents of the Trust. The Direciors of Morthern Lights
Learing Trust are alss bhe Directors of the charitable company far the purposes of company kaw, The
charitable company operates as Morthem Lights Leaming Trust.

Detais of the Directors who served during the year, and to the date these sccounis are approved &3 inceaed
in the Reference and administrative details on page 1

Members® lability

Each member of fhe charitable company undertskes to contribute 1o the assats of the charitable company In the
avent of it baing wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they ceass to be & membar, such
amount @5 may be required, not exceeding E10, for the debts and kabilities conlracted before they ceased 1o be
a membes

Directors’ Indemnitias

Directors benefit from indemnity insurance under the Depariment of Education’s risk profaction amangement
(RP&) which by virtua of any rule of law would othersse aitach to them in respect of any naghgence, default or
breach of trust of breach of duty of which they may be guity in relation to the Trust, provided that any such
insurance shall not extend to any daim arsing from any act or omissicn which the Dweclors knew to be a
treach of trust or breach of duty and prowided also that any such ingtance shall nol extand o the costs of any
unsuccessiul defance fo & criminal proseculion brought against the Direciors in their capacity s Diractors of the
Tread The indemnity s wnlimited.



HNORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaraniee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Mathod of recrultment and appoiniment or clection of Directors

Mambershio is determined in accordance with the composition sat out in Arlicle 12 onwards In accordanca with
thia Arickes. the Trust is comprised &5 follows:

% & Mermbers — 1 of whom i the Chair of the Board of Directors
s 0 Direclors — 1 of whom s tha CED

The membars are responsible for appointing the Directors in discussion wih the body they reprasent in
acnardance with the composition set oul in Article 45 oowards, When vacancies anse, the membars are able lo
appoint Directors whare their skills and expertise are deemad benaficial to Trust operalions. An application and
due diligence process will ba undertaken lo ensure any fubure board membars share the athos and values of the
Trust and to ensura their appaintment will being added value to the Trust board, Direclors may approach
potential Direciors whosa skills appear to meet the requirements of the skills audit. The person applying to be a
Dhrector will complete an applcation. The chair of the board wil review this application and nominata tha
applicant 1o the members, where approprigie. The term of affice for any Direclor shall be 4 years, save thal fhis
fime limil shall not apgly 1o the CEO or any post held ex-offico. Subject to remadining eligible to be a particular
tyoa of Divecior, any Direcler may be re-appointed or re-alacted,

The artickes of association raquire there to be a minimum of three Dircctors to be responsible for the stalulory
and constitutional affairs of the Trust and #a management

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Directors

All Directors are provided wih an induction pack which provides them with an overview of Mortharn Lights
Leaming Trust, and owerview of the academies in the Trusl, an understanding of charity aspecls, an
understanding of the role of a Direclor, expectations of the role and relevant policies. The decumentaban

provided will atways include:

Qur gowermanse stnecture

termns of reference

schema of delegadion

artiches of association

Trusi development plan

annial calendar

latest Ofsied reparts for each of our academies
latest inancial actounts

latest approved d-year budge!

Academy Trust Handbook

MLLT Financial Procedures Policy

CC3 "The Essential Trustes What you need to know' and Charities and chanty trustess — an indiction far
school govermars

OIE Govarmnance Handbook

Molan Principles

NLLT Code ol Comduci

Felevanl Governance Handbook/DIE docurnantation

W W O @ & @ & @ & & &8 =

& & & @

The training and induction peovided for new Directors depends on their amsting expénence so addiional
docurnentalion may be provided whera necessarny.
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A Company Limited by Guarantes)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management jeontinuad)
Organisational structure

The Trust's unified maragement structure has been reviewed during 2020-21 and consisls of 4 levels:

Board of Diractars

s CEO and COFO (previously GFO)

s  Ewscutive Lesder Team [CEO, COFO, Headteachers {including Headteacher of associate schoal from Aprl
2021)

= Senior | eaderghip Teams (5LT)

The Direciors are rasponsible for stratogic, financlal, HR, estales, educational and governance responsibiities
inchuding determining policy, adopting annual improvemant plans following sel-evaluation raviews, montonng
the practices and procedures adopted by the Trust defermining strategic direction of the Trust nsk
managament, govemance and senior staff appomniments. They delegate the daydo-day operalional
management to the CED, COFD, Headt=achers and SLT teams who follow policies determined and adopted by
e Directors

The CEO COFO, Headtsachers and Directors are responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed
hudgets as stated in fhe Schame of Delegaton and Finance Policy and the appointment of siaff.

The Chief Operations and Finance Officer s responsitle for the management of the financial syElems, SOUTCng
acidicnal funds and ensuring efficient and effective use of resources. The Chief Operations and Finance Officer
is responsible Tor the authorsation of spending up to agreed limits 25 staled in the Schame of Delegation and

Firanca Handbook.

Tha Executive Leadership team has increased membership from April 2021 to include tha Headteachess of 5t
Helan's FPrimary an associate school of the Trust.

The Senior Leadership Team in Benedict Biscop CE Academy consasfs of the Headtoacher, Daputy
Headteacher and following a re-structura in 2020-21, two Assistant Headleachers. Hart Primary and St Peler's
Elwick CofE Primary School have & shared leadership team which consists of 8 Headleacher and two Assistant
Headteachers The Senior Leadarship Team are responsible for all elerments of Teaching and Learning in their

schools

Middis fsader network meatings were established m 2020.21. In these meetings middie leaders from all schools
work collaborativaly to expiors the curriculum and share Dest practice. This has ensured that he ment of the
currculum is shared scross the Trust and implesmented in each school thal best suils the individual school and

thisir Eammdrmunibes.
Arrangements for setting pay and remunaration of key management persennel
The Dwractors review the pay and remunamabon policy annually fliowing the guidance of.

» School Teachers Pay and Ganditions (STPC), and
National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of Service for Local Government Servicas (Green Hook)

This applies ta the Trust key management personnal and takes e account any benchmarks, paramabers or
criteria usad in setting thair pay Annual Perdformance Managemenl reviews [external and internal] recommend
pay awards to the Directors who decide any pay awards within the identified pay range for individuals. Adddional
responsdlities are also taken into account.
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MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management (continuad)
Trade union facility time

There were no Relevant Unwon Officials during the accounting period, therefore no paid Irade union activities
were undertaken and no working tme was given as fatility tme or any costs incurred

Related parties and other connected charities and crganisations

yWhere any Directors declare an intérest, procadures are i placa to address this. The Trust have adopled a
policy such thal whare any inferests are declared, the Director would remove themsebves from the decision-

making process,

There has been ana related party iransacton within the accounting period. P Clark s a parinar of Jacksons Law
who provide HR and employment advice urder SLA to the Trugt These servicas were provided ai cost in the

accounting parod,

Benedet Biscop CE Academy afe a Teaching School until August 2021 and were designabed @ Teaching
Seheol Hub for Sunderland, Scuth Tyneside & Gateshead in March 2021 for & set up phase for the period il
August 2021, Benaedict Biscop is the lead school in the Prince Bishops Teaching Schoal Alllance wihich providas
Initial Teacher Training {ITT), continucus professional develapment (CPD) and school o school support 12 a
range of partners and schools

Rusiness Interests are declared on the website and furthes detail of transactions during the year can be found in
Note 25,

Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

The prncipal objectve and activity of the chantable company, The Morthem Lights Leaming Trust, is to provide
outstanding education for pupils of all abiities batween the ages of 3-11. In accordance with the Aricles of
Association the chartable company has adopled a "Scheme of Governance™ appreved oy the Sacratary of
State for Education o advance for the public benefit education in the Linited Kingdom, in particular but withou
prejudice 1o the genesality of the fioregoing by establishing, mainiaining, camying on, managng and developng
academies which shal offer a broad and balanced curriculurm and which shall inchsde:

L Church of England schools designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the principles,
practices and tenats of the Church of England both generally and In particular m refation to amanging lor
religious education and dally acts of worship, and having regard to any advics Ssued by the Diocesan
Board of Education; and

Dihar academiss whetner with or without a designated relgious character. but n relation 1o each of the
acadamies o recognise and supgort their individual ethos, whether of not designated Church of England.

The Trust Central Team is based in Sunderiand, where the onginsl school, Benedicl Biscop CE Academy &
situstacs The two other schoals in the Trust, Hart Primary School and St Peter's Elwick ColE Primary School
igined the trust i 2018, Banadict Biscop has an Culstanding Ofsted judgemant {2012), Hart Primary has an
Dutstanding Ofsted judgement (2016} and St Peter's Elwick has a Good with Ouistanding for Leadership &
Management & Behaviour & Safety (20 5).

Al aeademies are non-selective and offer pupils a broad curiculum. The pupis whio attend the academies lve
maly in the surrsunding areas. To assist academic achievement and to suppor parents refuming o wark of
part timedfull time education. the academies operate some childcare fachities, This is provided when it is viable
fo run. All academies offer puplls activities and experiences boyond the school day, allowing many pupils of alt
ages to paricipate n a vanety of expariences which enhants learming and social development. Al academies
efganise varous visits and enrichment expenences to develop kearning beyand the classroom,

Page &




NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantae)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)

The Trust aims o ensure that our schools remain atl the hearl of their commurdies and retain e
detinctiveness, Our Trusi operales wilh inlegrity, a foundatan of suppon and pride in the achievemants of our
schools. 'We firmly bebeve that we are slronger together.

Chur Trust aims to support afl of our academies to:

.  Promaote valuss within the schools to ensure our children develop as citizens in society who will meks a
differanc i the world

e  Sbmulate in sach child a sense of curiosily 3nd exciterment about the world
Enc¢aurage our childreén 10 be courageous advocates
Encourage sach member of the schoal community bo develop thalr full potential by promaoting the
impoiance and valus of education and ke-iong isaming

e Provide s broad and halanced curriculum which allow pupils to expenence a wida range of opporiunities
that ensure thal chikdran find ther strengths and pEssions

« Provide a welcoming, stimulating learning environmant in which the contrbutions of all membars al lhe

commimukty are valued
« Develop strong links and pesitve relationships with govemors. parents, the Church, local industry and all

memoers of the commLniEes

Ot values sre daveloped through the curriculum and made real in our daily lives

Objectives, atrategies and activities

I zetting our ebigclives and planning our activibes the Directors have gven careful conssderation to the Charity
Commission's general guidance and public benedl,

Ojectives for 2020-21 covered the following areas across the sehools in our Trust. Dus to the impact of Covid
1% and the national lockdown, the criteria used to maasure suctess was adapied

Cwaranching Trust Priaritias:

o Ta irvest in our curriculum to ensure that all gaps in bkeaming are closed and all pugils receive the suppont

Ehiy recuare 1o make progress.

«  To invest in our IT skategy fo ensure that we provide our pupls with the best education, regardiess ol
isolation with a focus on pedagogy, curmcuksm and 1T systems.

o Toinvest in our staff and systems to enable the Trust to run smoothly and flexibly in the currenl conted.

v Toinvest i our own growth & capacity as a Trust

individual academies esch had thelr own ovetarching development prioriies that sit beneath thase Trust
priorities and detall the specific areas of the curriculum, IT, staff davelopment and growth. In 2020-21 thesa
nelused development of Local Governance, a pedagogical approach |o remale leaming, STEM, OPAL &
curriculum development of imtent, implamentation & mpact.

A2 a Trust we aim lo live sclely by our values of

Irtegrity
Community

Support
Pride
Voice of the Chdd
We have successfully achievad thie through our own intemal and extermal reviews and fasdback from
giakehciders, including staff, parent and pupil guesiicnmaines,
Page 7
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MORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

DIRECTORS" REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

We have a detalled growth strategy thal details our measurad, planned growth and incuces getall an our offer
of suppat a% & sponsor trus? as well as an Associate parinership model for good or betler schools interasted @n
working together with us to judge whethar tha fit is Aght and If they would be interesied i joining oar Trust

An Associate School, St Helen's Primary School in Hartlepocd, joined our Trust as an Associate school in Agil
2021, This has proved to be an effective parinership and modad for our Trus!

Public beneafit

The Directors confirm they have complied with thesr duty to have dug ragard 1o the guidance on pubbe beneftt as
puslished by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers or duties. Tha standand of sducation offered to
all pupils 15 cutstanding and 15 refesenced in the following section All charitable actwities ane undertaken b
develop the educaben of all pupils in #s care and partner organisations in the community

Strategic report
Aehigvements and Perflormancea

Koy performance indicators

Safeguarding: All safeguarding arangements in all academies was effective for 2020-2021. The Trust is
supparted by Safeguarding First

Estates: One school in the Trusi, Banedict Biscop CE Academy successtully extendad the school by 3
classrcoms to become a 1.5 form entry school, at the roquest of the Local Authority, It still remained over-
subseribed. Hart Prisnary School wall and fence work was completed after a defay due to Covid

Contribution to the wider system: The Trust continues to contribute lo the wider system, |l was successfully
designated as the Taaching Schoal Hub for Sunderland, South Tyneside & Gateshead in March 2021, The
Trust row provides Initial Teacher Training, defivers the new Early Career Framework, #cis as an Appropriate
Baody for ECTe and provides the new NPOs as well as providing suppart for the region and acling as 8 Signpost
o support teacher professional development from [TT to Execulive Laadarship & in all phases from Early Years
to pest 16, including special and alternative provision

The CEO continues 1o Chair the [ME Mafional Primary Headieacher Referenca Group and sit on fhe
Recruitment L Retention Advieory Group, Sha has also been deployed as an NLE in the regeon agamn this vesr
ard sits o the Ofsted CEO advisory group, along with a range of regional parinerships to coniribute 1o 1he
widar system

Academic: Intemal data and assessmenis evidence progress for all pupils and & standard of performance at a
simnilar lavel in all yaar groups far previous external assessmants. Sehool self-avaluation of the curmicubur and

pupil outcomes identifes performance that the Trust judges as good or outstanding, including closaly moniored
progress for pupils with SEND and Pupil Premium. Calch up funding has been deploved effactively and gaps

have closed for all pupils since ratufn frem lockdowns.

Attandance: Aftendanca acrass all 3 schools in the Trust rermaing higher than National Average at 37.7°% for
the academs year
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HORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee}

DIRECTORS' REPORT |[CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report {continued)
Achievements and Performanca [continuad)

Financial

Kay Parformanca Banedict Biscop CE|Harl Pnmany St Peters CofE[TOTAL
Indicator Acsdamy Primary

GAG Funding FU26,087 E612 11 ;

Total revenus funding £1,373, 747

Tatal Staffing C _E_EL'-"I.3E1

Reserves as at E£251,000 E142 000 £511,000
31821

Tatal costs as a % of[58.19% 56 .94%, a0 62% BE 24%
totad funding

Reserves as % of 27.10% 27 T 3% 26.28% 2B.22%
380

Going concern

After making appropriate enquires, the Board of Direclors has a reasonable axpeclation that tha Trust has
adequale resources to continue I operational exislence for fhe foresseable fulure. For this reasan they
conilinue o adopt the gaing concem basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the gaing concern basie can be found in the accounting policies.

Fimancial review

The majarity of the Trust's incoma = obtaéned lrom the Deparimen of Educabon (DfE) via the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA] in the form of recurment grants, the wse of which is restricled 1o particutar
purpases. The grants recaived from the DIEFESFA during the year ended 31 August 2021 and the associabed
sxpendiure are shown 8s restricied funds in the Statemaent of Financial Actiilies

The Trust also received grants for fived asseis from tne DIE/ESFA. In accordance with the Charities Statemant
of Recommendad practics, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2018), such grants are shown under
tha Statement of Financial Actvities as restricied mcomsa in the fixed asset fund, The restriclad fixed dsast fund
balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expeched useful life of the assats concemed,

In addition, the Trust had other income grants from the ESFA, funding from Local Authorities inchuding Early
Years Funding and High needs top up funding for children with Spacial Educational Nesds, The Trust have
additonal income from providing wraparound care in the form of breakfast, afier school and paid nurssfy
education

in Mareh 2021 the Trust was designated as the Teaching School Hub for Sunderland, South Tyneside and
Gateshasd. In tha 2020-21 sccounting period a startup grant was recaived to the value of E8C.00C.

Dunng the year ended 31 August 2021, total expendiure of £2 960,000 was in excess of recument grant funding
irom DFE/ESEA logether with olhar incoming resources. The excess of Income over expenditure for the year
{excluding pension reserve mevernents and restricted ficed asset lunds) was £101,000,

Al of the expenditure shown in the Statement of Fmancial Activibes ig in furtherance of the Trest's chiectives

At 31 Augus! 2021 net book value of fixed asseis was £1,681,000 and movements in langikle fixed assels are

=hown in note 13 1o the Financial Statements. The assets were used exclusivaly for provding education and tha
assotiated support seraces to the students of the academy trust

Page 3



NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS" REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report {continued)

The provisions of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 have been apphed in full in respect of LGRS pension
gchamae, resulting in a deficit of £1 457,000 recognised on the Balance Sheel.

The Trust held fund balances as ai 31 August 2021 of £787,000 comprising £87,000 of restriched genaral funds,
£1 707 000 of restricted fixed asset funds, 8 pension deficit of £9,457 000 and £450.000 of unresincted funds.

Resarves policy

The Directors are respansibls for determining the leval of financial reserves to be carried forward at the and of
ary financial perad The Directors have delegatad the monitaring of potential perod end reserves o e
Finance. Audit and Risk Managament Committes as part of heir terma of refarence.

The Directors will ensure that the levels of reserves that can ba carried forward at the end of the financial percd
will ba in ling with the guidance received from the ESFA on the treatment of Ganesal Annusl Grant (GAG)

income @nd olher grants

The Dvectors will alkways try to maich income with expenditure in ihe current period and will only carry forward
reserves that il considers ara necessary for fubure periods” expanditure. The Derectors wil pansider the School
Improvarmant Plans for capital developments required. The Direclors may sccumulaie reserve funds raised from
private scurces for the benefit of the academies in future years, and this is discussed anmually.

The Trust is @ming 1o buld up & resens of approxmately £180,000 over a S-ymar penod. This 15 approximately
1 manth of s1afing salary costs. The Trust has a policy of replacing and mproving the bulldings for the benefd
of the pupds currently within the academies and consiger this to be a reasonable amount. When the Trust
axpands, this figurs will grow in peoporbon.

Thera are no funds materally 1n deficit,

Funds cannat b2 realised by disposing of tangitle fixed assets

The armount of reserves showrn is above the S-year arget of £180,000. This ras been realised tnrough prushent
financial planning and is currantly £537,000,

The reserves palicy i reviewsd annually.

Page 10



NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Investment policy

The Trust has made no investments throughout the 2020-21 financial year. The Trust have continued o
investigate potential inveatments. Interest rates will o reviewed prior bo any Investment Any investments
autsise of the deposit account would be on a low risk basis taking gthical congiderations inte gccount and would

need pror Trest approval.

Our aim s o spend the publicly funded monies with which we are entrusied far the direct educational beneai of
students a8 soon 8s is prudenl. The Trus! dees not conswder the investment of surplus funds as & prmary
activity, rather it is the resull of best practice as and when circumsiances allow.

The Trust will prepare such budgets and cash flow forecasts as are required by kegisiaton and best practice, 1o
ensure the viability and sustainability of the activities of the Trust. From tima to time, operafional and strabeg
decissons related fo the education of pupds will result in substantial cash balances at the hank over & swaiained
period. These perods gre identifed by the Chiel Operations and Finance Officer as par of the nomal
forecasting activity and, when identified, will result in the Trust making an inwesimant in accordance with any
guidance prewided in the Trust's Financial Handbook

Priae to investing funds the CED and the Finance, Audit and Risk Management Commiltes miust be satished
{hat the cash flow predictions provided are accurate and that the amount and time penad of the investment will

not compromise the viability and sustainabdity of the activilies of the schogls.

Principal risks and uncerainties

Tha Trust maintains a risk regisier which s reviewsd regularly by the Finance, Audit and Risk Managemant
Committes to ensure satisfactory armangements are in place to manage the fisk. This has boen reviewed and
adapted in this current year to sireamling the prioritisad risks.

I February 2015, the Trust adopted the Risk Protection Arangements provided by the ESFA, This has
continued annually

Thera is an annual intemal review of all risk managerneant sues led by varous staff ¢.9. Sie Managar, Chiel
Operatisns Finance Officar and teaching staff. However, there is dlso ongoing reviews 0 response o situatons
or new lepisiation or information

During 2020-21, an intermal Health and Safety audit indicated minimum risks and besl practics. as did an
Ashestos Managemen! review. Tha compliance system introduced in the previous accaunting peniod s now
embedded fo ensure compliance across the academies This system will be further developed over the
following poriod 1o streamline risk assessments.

The Trus! eonsidars sl risks and the Direclors have implemented & number of systems 10 asesss risks that may
impact the Trust, especially in operstional areas, e.g.. i felalon lo teaching, managemen of IT secunty,
safeguarding, health and safety, educational school visits, and in relation fo tha contral of finance. They have
introduced systems, inchuding operational procedures and internal financial coftrols. The Directors are salishad
that systems are in place o mibgate exposura o major nsks.

A risk management review by tha RPA showed no areas of major concern. The Trust and the academies wil
continue to implement the recommended improvements over the 2021-22 financial yaar

The Trust understands thal the Coronavirus pandemes will contnee to bring a number of riske and the Directars
hava ensured Mat the risks are monitored and addressed through risk managemant of the Trust, including the
risk register and the intermal and external reviews and audits. The peincipal risks identified. and managed, in
Morbern Lighis Learnimg Trust include

« FPotential financial risy due to increased costs of cheaning supplies. Mitgated through prudant financial
management
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

DIRECTORS" REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2021

«  Patential inancial risk due (o requiremenis to amand estales to ensure siles am Covid secure. Miigated
threwsgh prudent financial maragament

s+ Potential financial risk due 1o increased staffing costs, e.g. cover for staff who still have to isolate as they
aren't fully vaccinated or through them iesting positive, Mitigated through carelul managemant of staffing,
robust contingency plans and use of remate education and IT infrasinucture investmeant

s Potential risk to sducational cutcomas and pupil welfare, Mitigated through IT infrastructure imsestmant, s
of remote education. staff training and GPD and chear risk assessments for ensuring pupil welfare, including
multi-agency working.

«  Potential risk 1o staff welfare. Mitigated through clear rigk assessments, opporfundies for staff 1o contributa
ta the managemant of risk, ws¢ of remate [T cormmunication, staff training and provision of suppon senvices
Iz slatt,

«  Potential risk to Health and Safety due to Coronavirus. Mdigated through clear risk assessments, devised
and updated in line with Governmant guidance and our Health and Sefety advisors, adaplec lor our

conlexts and updated regularly.
Fundraising
The Directors operate effective control over the Trust's fundraising by

» aciing in the best interests of the Trust
« managing individual academy rescurces responsibly, which includes prolecting and safeguarding its assets

» =cting with reasonable cane and skl
Tha Trusi manages all of s own fundraising, This & usad

« o provide adddonal rescurces fer tha pupis, which might not otherwrse be available.
» o support charitable caeses linked fo the schoal e.g.. Cancer relaled charilies, Childran in Mesd, etz

Tha means usad to fundramse s kept within schoo! populations and Include raising funds thraugh oupils taking
part in school-led sporsored events which includes famikes and friends contribuling o events such as cake
sales, Christmas fayres and non-uniform days. Whera possible, the Trust use this as an opportundy 10 develop
social awareness and a responsibilty for "giving™. AR pupils take par m these aclivilies, but we are aware that
some are winarable and tharefore there is no obligation 1o confribute financialy. In 2020-21, due o the partial
elesuras of schoo's and the Covid-19 restrictions, fundraising has bean necesaarily reduced,

The management af fundrising is responsible, with all mondes banked and accounted for Where possible, a
recaipt fram the Charity is always requested. The Complaints and Whistlebiowing policies would ensure all
complants and concems are dealt with appropristely.
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Plans for future periods

The Trust has a comprehensive growth sirategy and is commdlied to growth. We are working in parinership with
the RSC and Diocesa o grow and develop our Trust We currently have an Azsociate school working wilh us,
There are plans for our Trust to giow by 2 schools within tha next academic year. These plans are wel

underyay

VW ara contnuing to develop our new designation as the Teaching Schoal Hub for Sunderand. South Tynassse
& Gatashead We will further develop this offer and also devedop our [TT provision across the reglan. Wi are
also focused on ensuring that our growth as an organisation (as @ Trust growing in size and breadth of offer
including the Teaching School Hub) remains focused on clear culiure, vabuss & syalams.

Trust developmen] paonfies:

Embed our Trust vatues and further develop the culture of the Trust as one organsation

Develop a concise, acturate due diligence process with relevan enpertise

Carow in @ sustainable way to develop further opportunities for our staff and pupils

Dievelop tha Central Team structure 1o develop s a Trus!, including adapting &s we grow

Ensura the scheme of delegation continues to provide clarily as the Trust grows and adapls

Develop standardised language (& where relevant systems) on Early Reading, Assessment & Staff

appraisal

s Clear, apcuate reportng to the Board that is fexible fo the growing Trust and Incorporates school
performance, compliance, Trust & school self-evaluation

« Grow 8s an organisation, includmg ITT, Teaching School Hub, Trust CPD & sernces affered io the wider

sBCIOr

" ® ® O 8 @

Thase development pricrties are broken down into more detad, including the work on speciiic curnicuium areas.
in Trust development plans

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
The Trust and its Directors do nol act as the Custodian Direclors of any other charily organ:sation
Disclosure of information to awditors

Insatar as the Direclors are iwane

0 thesa is no relevant audit information of which the chanlable company’s audiors ang unaware, and
" f1at Directors have laken all 2leps that they oughl o have iaken 1o make themsehes aware of any
relevant sudit information and 1o establish that the auditars are aware of that infarmation

Thea Directors’ Repodr, inoorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Directors, as the
company directars, on 16 December 2021 and signed on its behadf by

VUerl.

M Stouph
Chairman
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A& Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERMAMNCE STATEMENT

Scopa of responsibility

As Direclors, we acknowledge we have owerall respansibility for ensuring thal Narthern Lights Leaming Trust
has an offective and sppropriate system of control, financial and otherwise However, such a system s
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of filure lo achieve business objectives, and can provice
anly ragsonable and not ebsolute assurance against matenal misstaiement or loss

As Dirsctors we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Govesnance Handbook -and
competeancy framework for gowemance.

The Baard of Directors has delegated the day-lo-cay responsibilty o the CEQ. as accounting offcer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with fhe requirements of both propriety and good financial managiment and
in sccordance with the requirements and responsibiities assigned to i in the funding agreement betwesn
Northarn Lights Learning Trusl and the Secratary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
io the Baard of Directors any material wesknesses or breakdoans in internal contral

Governance

The infarmation on governance included here supplemants that gdescriped in the Direclors’ Repon end in the
Satement of Direciors' Responsibiifies, Tha Board of Directors has formally met B limes during tha year and

held thair Anrual General Meating,

Atendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Directors was as follows:

Chrecinr Meatings attonded Cut of a possble
M Stouph, Chairman B &
P Clark T ]
J Hegton, CED and Accounding Officer H A
K Hammand L] B
P Farquhar {resigned 31 December 2020) 2 2
M Emmerson (apponted 24 Novemnber 2020) & 7
G Inkster a ]
S Lyimer 3 B
P Ci=zan 5 g
Govarnancns reviews:

A S-ymar sirategic plan is m place for Northern Lights Leaming Trust This is reviewed annually with a clear
eontinued fomus on grewing the Trust, sirengthaning governance and ensuring there ane appropriabe systems
and proceduras 1o suatain maasyred growih

An additional committae for the governance of the Tesching Schocl Hub and & womking group foeusing on Dus
Diigence, has been formed this year and added to the Board struciura as & result of the Trust Growth Plans

The Finance, Aud# and Risk Management Commities is a sub-committes of the mam Board of Directors. lts
purpose s 1o ensure effective use of resources whilst seaking ways o ensure outsianding and suglainable

provision and managing any proposed fisks.

During the year P Farquhar resigned as & Direcior and Chaer of the Finance, Audit and Risk Manageman
Committes. P Cisan, who is a qualified accountan), was appointed as Chair of this committes.
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantest

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED]

Governance {continuead)
Attandance during the year at meatings was as follows
Directar Mestings atended Ot of a possitle

P Farguhar (Chair until 31 Decamber 2020} 2 2
F Olsen (Chair from 1 Januasy 2021} | B
J Heaton - &
B Stouph L] B
5 Lyrmar B B
Review of valus lor money

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust debvers good value in the usa of
public resaurces. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers 10 the educational and widar
societal outcomes achisved in return for the taxpaysr resources recaivad

The sccounting officer congidars how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money dunng
each acadernic year, and reparts fo the Board of Directors where value for money can ba improved, el uding
the use of Benchmarking cata where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Trust has delverad improved

valus for money during the year by,

= Continuing the confract for sports cosching under SLA sawing on lunchtime supenieony cosls  whist
devalopng healthy physical activity, reducing incidants of poor behaviour.

s Dus to Covid-18, procedures were introduced to allow staff to work from home, this has conbnuad whnen
pasaible following the wider opening of schools 1o maximise working hours and minirnise staff absenca.

s Contnusl review of SLA'S to negotiate savings and to streamline conlracts across the Trust,

«  Funher investment in |T to conlinue the commitment for stafl to be able to daliver autstanding remabe

educaton o all pupils,

= Appontment of apprentices to bulld capacity and invest in staffl developmant

«  Restruchiring wraparound care and junchiime siaff structures following a resignation fo echieve savings and
provide conslatency o chikdren across the school day

s Cobaborative working across the Trust o reduce duphcation

« Covering temporary matemily vacancies by segregatng and radistributing responsibiliies aCT0SS esting
staff giving savings agsross staffing.

« Appointmant of pew external audiors following & tendening process.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The systam of intamal conirol is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all fsk of
fmilure to achieve policies, @ms and objectives. |t can, therefore. only provide reasonable and nol abschile
assurance of effectiveness. The syatem of internal contrel is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and priontse the risks to the achievement of Trust pelicies, aims and objectves. to avalials the fkelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and 1o manage tham efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of inlamal control has been in place in MWorthemn Lights Learning Trust since 1
Septembar 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the dale of approval of the annual reporn and financial

statemesnls,
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea}

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Directars has raviewed the key risks to which the Trust |s exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implementad to mitigate those risks. Tha Board of Direclors is
of tha view thal there is 3 formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's
significant risks ihat has been in place for the perod 1 Saplember 2020 to-31 August 2021 and up 1o the date of
spproval of the annusl report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Directors.

The risk and control framawork

The Trust's system of internal financial control iz based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegaton and accountability. In
particular, it mchides

. comprehansive budgating and monitoring syslems wilth an annual budget and penodic frumnceal reporis
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors

. regular reviews by the Financa, Audil and Risk Management Committea of reports which ndicate

financial parformance sganst the forecasis and of major purchase plans. capital works and expanditure

programmes

saiting targets to measure financial and other perfarmance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

dalagation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

The Board of Directors has decided o buy-in an intemnal audit senace from Azets Audit Serces.

The mternal auditar's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing & range of chacks on the
Trust's financial and ather systams. In particular, the checks cammied oul in the cument parcd included:

% testing risks from previows repors

+ lesting of accounts and reconciliation systems

+ ftesting of risk managemani processes

testing of purchasing syslems

feshng of payroll systems

testng of comporale governance

testing of income recording Syslems

testng of control of the Trust bank accounts

On @ lermiy basis. the auditor repors to the Beard of Direclors, throwgh the Finance, Auwdt and Risk
Managameni Committes on the operation of the systams of eantrol and on the discharge of the Board of
Directoss’ financial responsialties and annually prepares an annual summary neport Yo the Cammities outlining
e areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions o halp the Committes consider achions

and assess S Of ySar progreasa

Following the internal reviews in 2020-21 an electronic form has been intraduced enable sasker capturing of
Bussvees [nterasts for Members, Dirsclors and local Governors and members of the Sensor Leadership Teams.
Aniditional password security was added to the Trest Accounting system. Procadures have bien tightenad for
the use of credit cards and development has been delivered o admin stalf. particulardy those in new roles on the

financial procedures policy in place.
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

GCOVERMANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review al effactiveness

As accounting officer. tha CED has respansibiity for reviewing the effectivensss af the systemn of internal
control, During the year in queston the review has bean wformed by:

= tha wark of the intemal auditar,

. the work of the exiernal auditors;

" tha financial managemant and govermnance sell-assessment process,

= tha work of the exscutive managers within the Trust who have responsibiliey for the developmen| amd

maintenance af the intarnal control frammasor.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications af the result alf their review of the syztem of intemal
control by the committee and a plan %o address weaknessas and ensure continuous improvement of the

system 15 in Face,

Approvad by order of the membars of the Board of Directors on 16 Decamber 2021 and signed on their behall
by

M Stouph J Haaton
Chairman Accounhing Officer
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MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Marthern Lights Learning Trust | have considered my responsibilty 1o nobify the Trusd
Board of Directors and the Education and Skills Funding Ageney (ESFA) of matanial irmegulanty, improprigly and
non-compliance with ferms and conditions of all funding recelved by the Trust under the fundieg agreemant in
place between tha Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my considerstion I have had dua
regard 1o the requiraments of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020,

| confinm that | and the Trust Board of Directors ara able to idantdy any material imegular or improper use of all
funds by the Trust or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's

funding agreemeni and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020,

| confirm that ne natances of matertal imegularity, impropeety or funding non-compliance have been discovensd
‘o date. If any instances are \dentfied afier the dale of this statemani, these will be nolified 1o the Board af

Direciars and ESFA,

T Healit

J Haaton
Apcounting Officar
Drate: 16 December 2021
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Directors (who are also the directors of the charitable compary for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Directors’ Raport and the financal stalements in accordance with the Academies

Accounts Diraction publishad by the Education and Skifls Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards [United Kingdom Ganarally Accented Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulsbons.

Company kaw requines the Dreclors to prepare financial stalements for each financial . Under company law, the
Direcinrs must not approve the financial statemeants unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable comgpany and of ils incoming resources and application of resources,
including its mcome and expendifure, for that paricd. In prepanng these financial statements, the Direclors are

racguired to,

seleel sultable accounting polickes and then apply them consistently
abserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accoumts Direction

2020 to 2021
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
siate whethet applcable UK Accounting Standards have besn foliowed, subject fo any malenal
depariures disclosed and explained in the financial statarmerts.

= prepate the financial statements an the going concern basts uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the
chantable company will centinua in business

Tha Directors are responsible Tor keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficiant b shaow and explain
fhe charitsble company's transactans and disclose with reasonable accuracy gt any time the financial position
aof the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial slatements comply with the Companizs
Act 2006. They are also respansitle for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and haence tar 1aking
reasonable steps for the prevent:on and detection of fraud and other irmegularitieg.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that o ils condwct and coeration the chartable company applEs
Fnancial and other confrols, which confarm with the requirements both of propriety and of good financeal
management, They are alsa responsible for engunng grants recoived from ESFAMIE have been applied for the

purpnses intended,
The Directors ae responsible for the maintenance and integrty of the corporate and financial informialisn

included an the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation ana
dissemination of financial statements may differ fram legislation in other jursdictions

Approved by arder of the members of the Board of Direclors on 16 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by

/YA

MW Stouph
Chairman
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MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantsa)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statamants of Northem Lights Learning Trust (the ‘trust’) for the year anded 31
August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet tha Staberment of Cash
Flows and the relsied notes, including @ summary of significant accounting policies. Tha fimancial reporting
framework thal has been appled @ Meir preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Stendards
{United Kingdam Generally Accepted Accounfing Practice), including Financial Feporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standasd applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities S0ORP 2018 and Ihe
Academes Arcounts Diraction 2020 to 2021 issuad by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

i our opinion the financial stalamants:

. gve a true and fair view of the siale of the Trust's affairs as al 31 Augus! 2021 and of iis Incoming
resources and application of resourcas, Including its incorme and expendilure for the year than ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Fractice, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charties
SORP 7015 and the Acsdemies Accourts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills

Funding Agency,
Basig lor apinion

W conductad our audit in accordanca with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {IS5As (LK)} and applicable
law. Dur responsibilies under those standards are further descnbed in the Auditcrs' responaibifities Tof the audd
of the hnancial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in proordanca with the etheaal
requerernents that are relevant to our audit of the fnancial slalements it the United Kingdom, Ineluging the
Financal Reparting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other athical responsibilties in
accordance with these reguirements. We balieve thal the audit @vidences wa have oblained & sufficiant and

appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opmion,
Concluslons relating to going concern

in audiing the fnancial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concem bass of
accourting o the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate

Based on the work wa have perfarmed, wa have not identified any material unceramiias reialing by Ervents or
conditions that, indwidually or colleciively, may cas! sgnificant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue 25 a going
concem for @ period of at least twehee months from whan the financial stetements ans aulhdaasd for issue.

Cwur responsibililies and the responsibiliies of the Directors wiith respec! {0 gaing concemn are describad in tha
relavant saclions of this repod.

Page 21}



NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea}

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Dther information

The other infarmation comprses the informabon included in the Annual Report other than tha Tmancsal
slatements and our Auditors' Report tharson. The Directors are respansitle for the other information contained
within tha Annual Repart. QOur opinion on the financial slatements doss nat covar the ather information and,
pxcept to the extent othenwmse explicifly stated in our report, we do not exprass any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibity 18 1o read the other information and, in doing 5o, consider whether the
other imlasenation | matenially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtainad in the course
af the audit or ofherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we icentily such material inconsistencias o
gpparcnt malenal misstatements, we are required fo determine whether this gives risa to a material
msstatament In the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we canclsde
that there is a material misstatement of this cther information, we are required to report that fact

We hawe nothing to report in this regand
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008

In aur apinion, basad on the work undertaiken in the course of e audit;

" the information given in the Directors’ Report icluding the Stratege Report fior the Anancial year for
which the financial statemants ane prepared is consistent with the finantal statemanis

. the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applcable hegal
requirgrments,

Makers an which we are required to report by exception

in the ght of our knowledge and understanding of the Trus! and its environment abtained in the course of the
ausdit, we have not identified material misstatemants in the Directors’ Repor inchuding the Siralegic Report

We have nathing 1o report In respect of the following matters in refation o which the Companies Act 2006
requises us o repor 1o you F, in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have nol been kept, of relurms adequate for our awdd have not been
recatved from branches nol visited by us, or
tha financial slatements are nof in agreement with the sccounting records and rstums, or
cartain disclosures of Dwactors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have rol received all the information and explanations we reguire for ouwr awdit,

Responsibilities of trustess

As explaimed mare fully in the Directors’ Responsibdiies Statemant, tha Directors {who are also the directons of
the Trust for the purposes of company kaw) are responsible for the praparation of the financial staterments and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fawr view, and for such internal conirol as iha Directors determine s
necassary o enable the preparation of financal statements thal are fres from material misstatement. whether

dum to fraud or emaor,

In preparing the financial staternents, the Directors are responsibie for assessing the Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, distiosing, as applicable. matlers related to going concemn and using the going concarn
hasis of accounting unless the Directors either intend 1o lquidate the Trust or {o coase operalions, or have no

reglistic alternativa but to do so.
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NORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

INDEFENDENT ALUDITORS" REPORT ON THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HNORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responslbilities for the audit of the financial statements

Dur ohjectives are 10 obtain reasonabe assurance about whether the financial stalements as @ whole are free
frem matenal misstalemaend, whather due to fraud or erros, and o ssue an Auditers’ Report that includes our
opirion, Reasonable assurance 5 a high level of assurance, but i3 not & guarantes that an awdit conducted in
accordance with |5As (UK) will abvays detect a material misstaternent when il exists. Misstatements can arise
fram fraud or errer and are considered matenal & indvidually or 0 the aggregate, they could reascnably be
pxpectes to influsnce the economic decisions of users taken on the Basis of these financa stalameants.

frregulasities, includmg frawd, are instances of non-complance with aws and regulabions. We design
procedures in line with our responsiblilities, outlined sbove, to detect maleral misslaterments in respect of
iraguianties, inchding fraud, Our audit must be alert fo the rizk of manipulation of the hnancial slalements and
gaak to uncerstand the incentives and oppodunifies for management o achisve this,

Wa undertake the following procedures o identify and respond o these riaks of non-comoliance;

» Understanding the key legal and regulatory framaworks that are appicable fo the Trust We communicated
identified lows and reguiafions throughout the audit team and remained aler o any indications of
noncompliance throweghout the audit. W determined the most sigrificant of these 1o ba the regulations sat
out by the DIE/ESFA, Our auddt focuses on financial mattkers as set out in our regularity opinion. Othar Kay
laws and regulaticns included safeguarding, Heallh & Safety, GDPR and employment law

*  Enquiry of trustees and management as fo policies and procadures o enswre compliance and any Known
inslances of non-complance

= Review of board minutes and comespondence with ragulators

+ Enguiry of trustees and management &s io areas of the financial statements susceptible to fraud and how
these risks are managed

+ Challenging managemant on key estimates, assumplions and jusgements made in the preparation of tha
fnancial stalements, These key areas of uncertainty are daclosed in the accounting policies

+ |denfifying and testing unusual joumal entries, with 8 particular focus on manual joumal entries

Through these procedures, we did nol becomi sware of aciual or suspectad non-complianc.

We plannec and performed our audi in ccordanca with auditing standards but owing to the inherent hmitations
of procedures required in these areas, there 5 an unavoidable risk that we may not have detacted & matarial
misstaternent in the accounts. The further removed non-compliance with |aws and regulations is from the
gvents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, tha less Bkely we would become aware of it The
risk of not delecting a material misstaternent due to fraud & higher than the risk of nof defecting one resulling
from error, as fraud may involve concealment, collusian, forgery, misrepresentations, or oveenide of intarmal
conirols. We are nol responsible for prevenling non-complisnce and cannol be expected to dofec non.
compliance with all laws and ragulations,

A further description of our responsibilities for {he audd of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www I org uk/auditorsresponsbiities. This description forms part of ow
Auditors’ Report.

Use of our report

This repart & made solely to the charitable Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Par 16
of the Companies Act 2008, Our audit work has bean undertaken so that wa might stale (o the charitable Trust's
members those matters we are required ko state o them in an Auditors’ Report and for no ofher purpose. To the
fullest exiant parmitied by law, we do not accept or assumae responsibilily 1o anyone olher than the chantabe
Trust and its rmemibers, a5 a body, for our audit work, for this repor, or for the opinions wa have formed.
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantae)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

g:'_i“_,j_h {:_:t—hi'\ L Q

Kavin Shotton BA BFP FCA |Senior Statulory Auditor)
for and on behal of

Clive Owen LLP

Chartered Acsountants

Statutory Ausditors

140 Conizchife Road

Crarhmghon

County Durkam

OL3 TRT

owe 1114
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRLST
(& Company Limited by Guarantesa)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN
LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In ascordance with the terms af our engagamant latter dated 4 March 2021 and further to the requiramants of
the Education and Skils Funding Agency (ESFA} as inchsded in the Academies Accounts Cirection 2020 o
2021 we have carried cul an engagemant o cbitam imited assurance about whether the expanditure digbasrged
and incoma recaived by Northem Lights Learning Trust during the year 1 September 2020 1o 31 August 2021
have been apolied lo the purposes identified by Pariament and the financial transactions conform fo the
guthorities which govenn them

This report i& made solely fo Morthemn Lights Leaming Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letier, Our work has been undertaken 50 thal we might stals to Wonhem Lights Learmang Trust and
ESFA thase matters we are required o state in & report and for ne other purposa. To the fullest sxtent permitbed
by kaw, we do not accept or assume respensibdity 1o anyone othes than Norhern Lights Leamning Trust and
ESFA for aur wark, fof this report. or for the conclusion we have farmed.

Respective respansibilities of Northern Lights Learning Trust's accounting officer and the
raparting accountant

The accounting officer is respongible, undes the requirements of Morthern Lights Learning Trusts funding
agresment with the Sacretary of Siate for Educaton dated 23 January 2012 and the Academies Financal
Handbook extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expendifure disbursed and income received i
applied for the purposes intended by Farkiament and the financial irensactions canform to the authorites which

goverm them,

Our responsibfities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and @ o obtain limited assurance and report In accordance with our engagement lafer and e
requiremanis of the Academias Accounts Direction 2020 1o 2021, We repart 1o you whether anyihing nas come
ta our attention in carmying oul our work which suggests that in all matenal respects, sxpendiure dishursed and
incoma receved during the year 1 Seplemiber 2020 to 31 August 2021 have nol been appled to puUrpOsRE
intended by Parfiament or thal the financial transactions do not eonform 1o the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in Bccordance with the Framework and Gusde for Extemal Auditars and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
definad in our engagement lattar

The abjective of a limited assurance engagement is to parform such procedures as to obiain information and
explanalions in order o prowide us with sufficient appropriate gyidence to express & negative conclusion an

Tagulnn'.:,r

A fmited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not ansble us to cbiain asswrance 1hat we would become Eware of all significant matters that
might be idenified in a reasonable assurance engagemant. Accordingly, we do nol axpress a posithve opsnior,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant o the reguianity and propriety of
the Trwst's incore and expenditure

The woik unceraten to draw o our conclusion InGludee:

Review of governing body and committea minutes;

Review of termly Intemal Assurance reports;

Completion of saif asssssment questionnaine by Accounting Officer,

Review documentation provided to Directors and Accounting Officer satting out responsibilities;
Obtain formal lefters of representation detailing the responsibilites of Directors,

Review of payroll. purchases and expenses claims on a sarmple basis;

Confirmation that the lines of delegation and lmits set have been adherad 10|

Evaluation of mternal control procedures and reparing knes:

Revinw cash payments for unuseal fransachons,

" O 8 8 4 & ¥ & @™
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaraniee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN

LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Reviow of credit card ransachons

Roview of registers of interests;

Review relabed pary ransactions,

Review of borrowing agreements;

Review of land and buliding transactions;

Review of polential and actual bad debts;

Review an instance of gifts/haspitality to ensure in ling with policy;
Review whisieblowing proceduras;

Review pay policy and facians datermining executve pary,
Raview of slafl sxpanses;

Revies other moome o ensura is in line with funding agresmant,
Review govarnancs siructure and number of meetings held; and
Rieviay whothar thers 5 B fsk register in place

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come o owr attenBion which suggest n all matanal respacts 1he
expenditure disbursed and kvcome received during the year 1 Saptember 2020 to 31 Augus! 2021 hes not been
applied to purposes Intended by Parliament and the financial transactons do nof conform ta the authorities

winch govern tham.

C_l'nﬂJ..,_Q‘H-Lﬁ LL:

Reporting Accoundant
Cllve Owen LLP

140 Conjscliffe Roaa
Crarlingtan

County Durham

DL3 TRT

Date. § 1"'!_\‘1.'
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guaranbse)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Mote

Inceme from:

Daonations &nd capdal
granis

Cthier trading achvitkes
Chartable achvities
Teaching schools 26

B o sk

Total income

Expenditure on:

Radging fumnds

Charitable activibes &
Teaching schodls 26

Tatal expenditure

Mot

incomel|expenditura)
Transfers Betwean

funds 1
Met movamant in

funds befare othar
recognised

gains!{losses)

Othor recognised
gainal{losses):

Actuaral lessss on
defined benefit peAsion
schemes 22

Nat movemant in
funds

Ragcanciliation of
funes:

Todtal funds brought
foraand

Met movemant in funds

Total funds carriad
forward

Rastricted
Unrasiriclad Hestricted fixed assed Total Total
fumdls funds funds funds funds
2021 201 2021 2021 200
E000 £000 £000 000 £000
? - 21 23 25
104 - - 104 Ta
i} 2495 - 2,585 2 463
HD - 2o
186 2575 21 2,754 2 557
= - " = E,ﬁ
GG 27348 Fi] 2,880 2,530
. 80 =3 an %
GE 2H148 i) 2,580 2,718
130 (243) {55) {168) {144
= (e ) -
130 (285) {33y {168) (148)
- 196} = {95) (437
130 {350) [33) {253) {585
—
M {1.010) 1.740 1,050 1,838
130 {380} {33) {263) (585)
450 11,370) 1,707 TET 1,050
——— e
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

(A Compan

y Limited by Guarantes)

REGISTERED NUMBER: 07305140

Filxed asscts
Tangbde aasals

Current assots

Dabdors
Cash at hank and in hand

Cradbiors. amounts falling due wilthin one year 1=

Hat current assots

Tolal assets less current liabilities

Mot assets excluding pension llability
Dafined benefit pension scheme liabdity

Taotal net assats

Furds of the Acsedemy Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixad asset funds
Restricted inoame funds

Restricied funds excluding pensson assat

Penmson feserve

Taotal restricted funds
Unrestrictad inoome funde

Total funds

BALAMCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

2021
Moia £000
13 1,851
1,681
4 4153
718
Br2
(319)
553
2244
2204
2 (1,457)
87
| ——1
15 1,707
16 a7
14 1,704
16 {1,45T)
16 337
18 450
i 14
———————

2020
£000
1,738
1,739
a8
Bar
T25
(266)
454
2,188
2. 108
{1,148)
1,050
e ———
1,740
138
1878
(1,148)
T30
320
1,050
—_——
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

(A& Company Limited by Guarantea)
REGISTERED HUMBER: 07808140

BALAMCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

The financial stalerments have beean prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities subject to
the smell companes regime

The financial sEtements an pages 26 o 57 were approved by the Directors. and authevsmed for ssee on 16
Dacermber 2021 and are signed on thair behalf, by

St

M Stouph
Chamman
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantea|

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Met cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents In the year
Cash and cash ecuevalents at the beginning of the year

Caah and cash sguivalents at the end of tha year

Kots

18

14

20, &1

2021 2020
E000 EQC0
o2 124
(10 29}
B2 a5
E37 Gl
?‘IEII G3T
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaranies)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Accounting policles

14

1.2

1.2

& summary of tha principal accounting policies adopted (which have been aspplied consistenBy,
except where notad), judgments and key scurces of estimation uncertainty, i set out below.

Basls of preparatian of financial statemenis

The financial stalemants of the Trust which s 8 publc benefit antity undes FRS 102, have been
propared under the historc cosl convention in accordance with the Financial Reparting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charfies,
Statement of Recommended Practice spplicable o charties preparing their accounts in accordance
with ihe Financial Reparding Slandard applicable n the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
{Charities SORF (FRS 102)). the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA. the
Charilies Act 2011 and the Companias Act 2005,

Going concern

The Direciors assess whalhar ihe use of going concem s appropnate Le. whather there are any
material uncertaintias refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abiity of
the Trust to confinue as a going concem. The Directors make this assessment in respect of & period
of at lzast one year from the dats of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
poncluded that the Trust has adeguale resources bo continue in oparational existence for tha
foraseaabla future and there are no malenal uncertainties about e Trusts ability to contimue as a

going concam, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial stalamenie.

Incodme

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entifiement to the funds, the receipt is
prohable and the amourt can be rmeasured refiably.

Granis

Grants are included in the Siatement of Financisl Activities on 8 recelvable basis. The balance alf
income recaived for specific purposes but nol expended during the pafiod is shown in the peElEan
funes on the Balance Sheet Whera income |8 recaived in advance of mesting any performance-
relatad conditions there is not unconditional entilement fo the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in crediors Bs deferred income untl the performance-related condibons are mel
Where entitlement accurs before income is received. the income is accrued.

Genaral Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activilies in the year for
which Il iz recaivable and any sbatement in respect of tha year is deducted from mcome and

recognised as a lability.

Capital grants are recognised m full when inere is an unconditional entilemant fo the grant. Unepant
amounis of capital grants are reflacted in thin Balance Sheet in the restricted fied assel fund

Capital granis ame recognised when there 5 antillerment and are ned deferred ocvad the Ha of (ke
aszet on which they are expanded

Domations
Donations & recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
whera the recespt is probable and the amount ¢an be refiably measured

Othar income
Qthar incoma, including the hire of facilities, s recognesed in the year & is recervable and to tha
pxtert the Trest has provided fhe goods or services.

1.4 Exzpenditura
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Accounting policles [continued)

1.5

Expanditure is recognised once there 18 a legal or constructive obligation 1o transfer economic
berafit 1o a thied party, it is probable that & transher of aoonomic benafils wil be requred @
sattiement and the amourt of the obligation can be measured refably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each actily are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs. including support costs involved in undertaking each actvity. Direcl cosis
aftributabie to a single aclivity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared cosis which contribule fo
more than one activity and suppord costs whch are not stirbutable to 3 single activity ars
apporticned between those activities on a basis consislant with the use of rescurces. Central staif
costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation chargas aliocated on the partion of
ihe assel's USH

Al resources expended are inclusive of imecoverable VAT,

Charitable activities
These ara costs incurred an the Trust's aducational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned 1o charitable activities

Tangibla fixed assets

Assats costing £500 or more are capitalised a3 tangible fixed assets and are camed at cosl. net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment

Where tangible fixed assais have been acquired with the sid of spacilic grants, gither Tram the
government o¢ fram the private sector, they ane included n the Balance Sheet af cosi and
depraciated over their expeciad useful economic ife. Whers there are specific condiions attached
to the funding requiring the continuad use of the asset, the related grants are credited fo & regtrictad
fixeedl @aset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried fonward in the Bsalance Sheol
Depreciation on the ielevant assets is charged directly 1o the resfricked fixed assst fund n the
Statermnent of Financial Astivities YWhaere tangible fived assels have been acouired with unrestnched
funds. depreciation on such assels is charged to the unrestricied fund

Depreciation s prowded on all langble fixed assets other than fraahold land and assels under
construstion. at rates calculated to write off the cost of each assat on & straight-ine basis over i1a
oxpacied usafidd ife, as follows

Depreciation is provided on the following bases

Leasghold tand - 125 years straight line
Leasehold bulldings - &0 yaars siraight line
Leasehoid buildings - &0 yaars $iraaght lime
fmprovements

Fixtures, fitings & equipment - 5 - § years straight ng
Computer aquiprmeant - 3 yuars straight line
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NORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.8

Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities ame recognised when thers is an obligation a1 the Balance Shes! date as a result of a past
evenl, it is probable that & ransfer of economic benafit will be required in sefflement, and (he
amount of the setilement can be estmaled reliably. Liabilities are recognisad at the amaunt that the
Trust anticipates it will pay to seftia the debt or the amount if has received as advanted paymenis for
the goods of services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the besi aslimate of the amounts
required to settle the obigation Where the effect of the time vaue ol maoney is materiad, the
provision |s based on the present value of those amounts, discountad at the pre-lax discownt rabe
that reflects the risks specific to the fiablity. The unwinding of the dscount is recognised within
interest payable and similar chasges.

Operating leases

Renlals payabie under operating leases are charged agans income on & siranghi-line bass ower the
period of the lesse

Financial ingtrumants

The Trust only holcs basic financial instruments as defined n FRS 102. The financial sssels and
financial iabilities of he Trust and their measurement bases ars as follows

Financial assals - frade and other dabtors are Dasi financial instruments and ane debt instruments
measutad &t amortsed cost as detailed in nofe 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrumant and 15 measured at face value.

Financial fishifles - trade creditors, accruals and ofher creditors are financal Instrumeants, and are
manzurad at amanisad cost as detalled in note 15. Taxaton and social security ara not ineluchad n
tha financial instrumenis disclosure definrbcn.

Taxation

The Trust is considered [o pass the tesis sai out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Financa Act 2010
and therefore it meets the defindion of 8 charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes
Accordingly, the academy trust i potentislly axempl from laxston i respect of income or capslal
gains recanved within calegenies covered by chapter 3 pari 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Caction 256 of tha Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1982, 1o the extent that such income o gaans

are applied axclusively to chantable purposes
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Penslons benefits

Refirement benefits fo employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{TPS} and the Local Government Pansien Schema {LGPS'). Thess are defined banafil schemes

and the assels are hold separataly from those of the Trist

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contrbutions are calculated so a8 to spraad the cosl of
pansions over employsas’ working lves with the Trugt in such a way that the pension cosl s a
substantially level percantage of current and future pensionable payroll The contriputions ara
dutarmined by the Governmen! Actuary on the basis of guadrennial valuations using & prospachve
Jnit credil method, TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying agsets 1o assign
botween employers. Consequenty, the TPS is freated as & defined contibution schame for
accounting purposes and the contrbutions recognised in the penod to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer achema and the assets are beld saparaiely from those af the
Trust n separate trustes adminisiered funds. Pension scheme assels are measurad at fair valua
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rabe equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
sguivalant term and currency to the kabllites. The acluanal valuations are oitained at least
iriznnially ang are updated at each Balance Sheat date. The amounts charged to operating sumlus
are tha cufmenl sernce costs and the costs of scheme introductions. benefit changas, sotflements
and curtailments, Thay ace incleded as part of stafl cosls as incured, Nel interest on the net delined
benalit llabliasset s also recognised in the Statemant of Financial Activities and compdises e
interast cost on tha defined benefit abligation and interest income on Ihe schema assels, calculatad
by multiplying the fasr value of the scheme assets at the baginning of the period by iné rate used to
discount the bensfit obligations. The difference batween the interest income on the schema assals
and the actual retum on the scheme assets is recognisad in other racognised gaing and losses.

. 1.11 Fund accounting

Unsrestricied income funds represent those resources which may be used towards mesting any of
\he charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Directors

Rastricied fixed ssset funds are resources which are 1o be applied o specfic capstal purposes
impased by the funders whore the asset acquired or created is held for a specife purposa

Restricied ganeral funds comprisa all othver restricted funds received with resirictions imposed by the
funderdonar and include grants fram the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Departmant for
Education and Local Authoriy,
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2021

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Accounting estimates and judgerments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenience
and othar faciors, including expectations of future events that are believed to ba reasonable under the

circumstancas.
Crical accounbng estimates and essumpbons:

The Trust makes estmales and assumplions ponceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by defindion, seldom equal e reisted aciual resulls. The esfimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment to the cafrying amounts of
assats and Nabdities within the nexd inancigl year are discussad balow.

The presant value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends an a
number of facors thal are determined on an actuanal basls using &8 wariety of assumgliors. Tha
assumptions used in datarmining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Amy
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in nole 22, will impact the carrying amount of the
pensson Rabllity. Furthermars a roll forward approach which projects results from the Elest full actuansl
valuation performed st 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensons liabdity at 31
Auguat 2021. Any differances between the figures derived from the roll forward epproach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the camying amount of tha pengion liability

Depreciation = Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an assat, lase its residal value,
over the economic life of that asset, An estimalte of the useful life of assets is detailed in the depreciation
accounting palicy. The value of depraciation charge during the year was £78,000,

Critical areas of judgement

The academy buildings are owned by the Durham Diocese Buard of Finance (the DDBF) The Trusd
pccupies the buildngs under a mera keence. The lcence delegates aspects of the managament of The
buildings to the academy trust for the time being. but does not vest any rghts over the bulldngs fo the
academy trugl. The Durham Diocese Board of Finance has given an underaking o the Secredary of
State that they will not give academy trust less than two years notice fo terminate the occupation of the
buikdings, Having considered the factual matrix under which The academy trust is occupying the buildings
e Directors have concluded that the value of the buildings sccupied by the acadgeny trust at tha date of
pomversion to an academy will not be recognised on the balance shest of the academy trust. In addition.
whiilsi the cccupation constitutes 8 donation in kind 1o the academy trust, the Directors consided hat the
cogt of obtaining @ valuation for such a donation outweighs the expense and therefars no such donation
and related expernse are included in the Stetement of Financial Actvitise. Addibong since conversion
funded by grant bids or from GAG have besn capialised as leasehold improvements and written off over
Ihesr ecamamic life.
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income from donations and capital grants

Festncied
Unresinicied  fixed asss Tatal Tatal
fund= funds fumdls funds
2021 2021 2031 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Oiher Donations 2 - 2 5
Capital Grands - 21 | 20
2 21 23 5
—_—— e me————— ———————
Todal 2020 & a0 25
e I — —_——
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MORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Funding for the Trust's educational operations

Unrestrictsd Restrcied Total Totad
funds funds funds. funds
201 2021 2021 2020
EQO0 E£00D £004 £000
DFE/ESFA grants
Genaral Annuzl Grant (GAG) 1,811 1.1 1.770
Othar DE/ESFA grants
Pupll Pramium - G5 65 B4
PE and Sport Premium - 52 52 52
UIFSM . &r &7 A7
Rales 4 | |
Teachsrs pay grant - 22 22 22
Taachers” pension grani - 6B &8 B8
Cifher DIE/ESFA grants - 15 15 .
= 2104 2.108 2,052
Other Governmant granis
SEN - T4 i 36
Easly Years Funding - 268 268 258
Local authonty grants - 4 4 K|
- 346 346 295
Dther income from the academy trust's
educational operations g 50 116
COVID-19 additional funding (DfEJESFA)
Catch-up Pramium - a2 32 .
Ciher DIEESFA COVID-18 funding = 1 1 ”
- 33 A3 =
COVID-1% additional funding (non-
HEESFA)
Cither COVID-19 fundding - T Fi -
7 7
a0 24895 2,585 2 483
e
Total 2020 108 2.354 2453
T e———

The Trust received E32k of funding for catch-up premium and cosls mcuered in respect of this lunding

totalled £33k,
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Tatal
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2020
Eo0d £000 £000
Man student catering incame 1 1 :
Fantal and latings incame 4 4 &
Recelpts from Supply Teacher Insurance claims 20 0 .
Mher Ta 73 74
104 104 79
_——— e e
Total 2020 i) F |
- -
Expendifure
Staff Costs Premises Cither Ttz Tatal
2021 2021 2021 2021 200
EQOO EQOD ECD0 E000 EOG0
Expenditura on fundrasing
iracding activities:
Dérect casts - - BS
Truai's educatonal operations:
Derecl costs 1,580 - 148 2,028 1,664
Allocated suppod costs 234 2685 353 ag52 T48
Teaching schoal a7 - 13 &0 -
2,181 285 q14 2,960 2T15
—_—me— e ]
Totad 2020 2,002 a 402 2715
—
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MORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
[& Company Limited by Guarantes]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Expenditure (continued)

In 2021 of the total expenditure, £66.000 (2020: £158,000) was o unvestricled funds and E£2 804 000

{2020 £2 557.000) was to restricted funds.

Thera ware no individual fransactions exceeding £5.000 for.
- Dompensalion paymants

- (Zifts mads buy the academy trust

- Fixad asoat lossas

= Stock koesas

« Unrecoverable debts

- Cash losses

Thers wers fixed asset Insses during the pariod totalling £2,567

There were no ex-gratia payments in the period.

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Supgort Tatal Talal
Direct Cosls cosls funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
E000 £004 EQOD £000
Trust's educalional operations 2,028 g5z 2,880 2830
—————— e——— e TY——
Total 2020 1,884 TdG 2,630
o —
Analysis of direct costs
Tatal Tolal
funds funda
2021 2020
£000 £000
Stalf costs 1879 1.737
Educatiansl supplies 105 BO
51aff developmant 14 16
Technology costs 12 28
Educational consultancy 12 7
Stall expanses 4 2
Cithar qerect costs 2 1
2.028 1,884



NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continuad)

Analysis of support costs

Pension financs cosls
Support staff cosls
Deprecaatan
Technology costs
Supply nsuranca
fiintenance of premises
Claaning

CHher premises coEis
Enmargy

Remni and rabes
Insuranca

Operaling lease rentals
Catering

Lepgal cosis = ather
Eecurity

Crihar support costs
Gowarmance costs

Tedal Total
funds funds
2021 2020
000 ECO0
19 10
234 217
T8 TH
) 10
S
%, &7
™ e
a3 i&
34 33
g 11
10 B
8 14
1M g
7 2
4
0 10
22 23
852 748
——————
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NORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Met incomef{expenditure)
Mel Incomelexpenditure] for the year includes:

0 2020
k000 £000
COparating loase rentals 2 14
Depraciatan of angibles fived assels T8 A
Loss an disposal of food assels 3 -
Fees paid o auditons for
- audit 8 B
- othear sEMIDES 1 &
—
Staff
a. Staff coats
Staff costs during the year were as follows
2021 020
£000 EX0
Wages and salanes 1,521 1,246
Social secunfy cosis 140 1
Prnsion cosis 515 428
2176 2.000
Agency stalf costs 5 2
2181 2,002
o |

Included in operating costs of defined pension schemes is a charge of £195.000 2020 £135,000)

ralating to the pension deficit achsarial adjustment
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Staff (continued)
b. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the yEar was as folicws:

2021 2020

Mo Na

Teacher 19 15
Administration and Support 40 35
Managemant B 8
B8 &2

_—
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
{A& Company Limited by Guarantae)

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
Staff {continued)
. Highar paid staff

Tha number of employees whose employee banefits (excluding employer pension coels) o i el
E60,000 was:

2021 2H

No. Na

in the band £60,001 - £70,000 2 1
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 1 1

) TEEes———

d. Key management personnel

The key management perscnnel of the Trust comprsa the Direclors and the semior management taam
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employes benefits {including employer penson conirnbutions and
employar nationasl seurance contributions) recened by key management personnel for ther sannicas to
the Trust was £581,000 (2020 - £484 000}

Central services

The Trust has provsded the following central services to ils scademies during the yaar:

HR adwice and tribunal insurance
payred

finance (accountingfaudit sarvices, budgsting software]
MAT govamance

safeguarding

health and satety

Trust wekbs1e hosting

DPO SLA

ICO registration

CEDQ parformanca management
. schoal improvament

The Trust charges for these services on the following Dasis:
« Mgt percentage of GAG income 8%

The actual smeunts charged durng the year wene as follows

2021 220
£ £000
Harl Community Primary School 30 29
St Petar's Ewick C of E School 26 268
Banadict Biscop C of E Acadamy &3 51
108 108

———
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Dirsctors’ remuneration and expenses

Oine or more Directors has been paid remuneration or has received other benafits from an amployment

with fie TrusL The principal and cther staf! Direclors only receive remunaration = respact of sarvices
they provide underiaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The vabse of Direcions' remuneration and other benefits was a3 foliows:

2021 2020

EC00 E0og

J Healon, (Acoounting Cfficer, CED) Remuneraiion T5 =80 TO-T8
Pansion conbributions paid 15=20 15-20

During tha year, Directors wara reimbursad Enil (2020 £210) in traved sxpensas. Mo other expenses wens
reimiursed ie Directors.

Directors’ and Officers” insurancea

The Trusi has opled info the Depariment for Education's risk proteciion arangement (RPA) an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Direclors and officers from claims arising from neglgent acts, @rfors or OMISSNS GCCUMIng whilst an
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. | is not possitle to gquantify the Directors &nd
officars indemnity alement from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership

Tangible fixed assels

loasataid Leasahold Fusrmiture,

land ond buildirgs Computer fatings &

builkdngs improvements  equipment Equspmant Total

EQQD £000 EOCD Enom
Coat
A1 1 September 2020 1,448 287 1hd ard 2301
Additons - i2 14 & N
Disposals - - - {8) (6
Al 31 August 201 1,448 290 208 ari 2,328
Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 59 3z 134 v 562
Charge for the year 34 T 26 8 Ta
Oin disposals - 3] (3]
At 31 August 2021 a3 3 160 343 G35
Mt book value
Ad 31 August 2021 1,383 280 A8 A 1,691
e —————— I e— — ] —
A1 31 Agust 2020 1,387 255 &0 v 1,738
—_—— .y =
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MORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{# Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Due within one year

Trade deblors

Pragayments and accrued income
Wat recoverabla

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other baxaticn and social securty
Oither credibors

Accruals and deferred incoma

Defarred incoms al 1 September 2020
Resources defarmed during the yoar
Ameounts released from previous peniods

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

2021 2020
£000 EDDN
a1 z
L9 63
83 23
153 Ba
—— T/
2021 2020
EDOO ED0DD
B2 o
a3 ao
oE a1
108 85
A8 266
————
2021 20
£ £000
40 50
Ja 40
(40} (50
ig 4l
e

Al the year end the Trust was holding universal infant free school meals and a rates ralief grant relaling to

tha next academic year
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantee|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statement of funds
Balance af 1 Balance at
September Transfars Gains/ 31 August
2020 Incame  Expandifung ot iLosses) 2021
000 £000 £00 £000 £000 EQOC
Unrestrictad funds
Genptal Funds 320 186 {B85] - - 450
Restricted general
funds
Genaral Annual
Grants{GAG) 110 1,811 (1.819) 22 B0
Pugl premium 65 (B5) - -
OEhar OIEESFA
Granls 12 £33 (238) - T
Cither Govarnmeant
(Eranis 16 272 (288) - - -
SEN - 74 (74
Covid-18 caichup
presTHLIT) - 3 (32)
Oihar MEESFA
Cowid funding 1 i1 - . ”
Other Covid funding T (7} - - -
Teaching school - &0 (B0} - :
Pensian resane {1,148 = (214} {05} {1.457)
{1,010) 24675 (2. 818) (22} (95} {1,370
Restricted fioed
assel funds
Inharited an
QanvErshon 1.387 - {3 - 1,353
DfE group capdat
grants A5 21 {17) a4
Capital expenditurs
from GAG 268 (25} 22 - 265
1,740 21 [ FE} 22 - 1.707
Total Restricted
funds T30 2588 (2.894) - (85} 337
Total funds 1,050 2,142 {2.960) (95} 787
——_ —— e
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NORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statemaent of funds {continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are 1o be apphed are s Toallorwva:

Tha Ganaral Anncal Grant (GAG) mugt be used for tha nommal running of the Trust including salares and
ralated costs, overheads, repairs and mantenance, and iNsurance.

Pupil Prermium is additional funding to be spent as the school smas T 1o sopport deprived students,

Usnivassal Infant Free School Maals (included within Other ME/ESFA Grants) is funding to provide 3 fros
school luneh 1o &l pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2.

Othet DIE/ESFA Grants also includas the PE and sporl premium grant, rates redial, teachers’ pay grant
and t=achers’ pension grant,

Caich-up pramium is usad to fund specific activities lo support the pupils’ educational recovery.

Othar DfE/ESFA Cowid funding and Other Covid funding relate to fundng recened 1o halp cover
additional costs mcurned during the Covid-19 pandemic.

Diher Government grants include Early Years funding for three and four year ol children, funding for
pugsis with Special Educational Needs and ather income from the local authority.

The pension resenvas is the liabiity due to the deficit on the Local Govemmani Pengion Schems,  Furthier
detads are shawn in nobta 22,

Tha restricted fixad asset funds rapreseanl monies recesved o puschase fixed assets, Depreciation is
charged against sach fund over the useful economic life of the assocaled assels.

Unrestricied funds inciude the income from undorm sales, school Wips and catering with the ralavant
costs allocatid accardingly.

A transfer of £22 000 has been made to capital expenditure from GAG to reflect those items mluded
within Exed assets which have been purchased using GAG monies,

Under the funding agresmant with the Secretary ol State, the Trus! was nol subject 1o a md on the
amount af GAG It could carry forward &t 31 August 2021,
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantae]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2011

Statemant of funds [continuod)

Comparative information in respact of the precading year iS 88 follows:

Balance st Balance at
1 Sepbember Tranafam Gains! 31 Augus!
2019 fncome  Expenditure infoul {Losses] 200
EQOD £000 £000 £000 EOD E0DD
Unrestricted
funds
Ganaral Funds 7HE 183 {159) . 120
Festricted
general funds
Genaral Annual
Granis(GAG) 144 1.778 (1,THE) (27 - 110
Cther
DFEESFA
Grants 273 (281] - 12
Other
GovernriEnt
Granta - 245 (279) - 18
Crthar 7 {7 =
Penson
resEre {556) [145) {437) {1,144
{422) 2,354 2 4TE) {27} (437} {1,100
Restricled
fixed asset
funds
inheriied on
COmYarson 1,420 (33} - 1,387
[FE group
capial grants = 20 (11} 13y 85
Captal
expenitums
frizen GAG 272 (34} an 268
1.7 M0 (T8) 7 - 1,740
Tatal
Restrictad
funds 1.348 2,374 {2.556) (437} T30
Total funds 1,635 2,567 (2,715 - (#437) 1,050
——slll === e - ] —
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund batances at 31 August 2021 wers allocated as follows:

021 2020
000 £000
Hart Community Primary School 142 120
&t Peters Elwick C of E Schaol 118 103
Benedict Biscop C of E Academy 251 226
Caniral sanices .o ]
Total before fixad assat funds and pansion resen/a 5ar 453
Restrictad flued asset fund 1707 1,740
Fension resane (1,457) (1.148)
Todal TB7 1,050
— 1 e ———— ]
Total cosl analysis by acadenmy
Expendilue mcurréd Dy each academy dunng the yeas was as folows
Teaaching
and
educational Qthar Diher cosls
support staff  support staff  Educaticnal eciudifng Total Todal
coste coghs supplies  depreciabion M 2020
E00Q E0OD £000 000 £000 E0OD
Hart Community
Primary School 478 35 18 126 659 E15
1 Peters Elwck
Cof E School ans 38 19 110 553 510
Banadict Bistop
C ol E Academy 810 111 G4 278 1.2688 1,184
Ceanfral services 207 46 - 71 324 268
Teaching school 51 17 - 12 a0 -
Trust 1,930 251 105 L #8384 2837

=-—=$==I'_==-_
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantae)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysis of net assots betwaen funds

Analysia of net assets between funds - current year

Restrcied

Unrestricbed Festricled  fixed assel Tatal

funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021

#0400 DD E00D 000

Tangibla fixed assats i e 1,691 1,681
Curenl aaseta 450 406 16 av2
Creditors dus within one year (315} (318)
Provisions For ablldies and changes {1,457} = {1,457}
Taotal 450 {1,370) 1.77av var
— e —_—————— ———————

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Resncied

Lnresiricted Reatricted  fixed asasl Tatal

funds funds funds funds

200 2020 2020 2020

£OD0 EQCD E000 £000

Tangible fiead assats . 1,730 1. 7348
Cumrant assets 320 a4 1 T25
Cradilors dus withén onig year (268} - (266)
Provisions for liabilities and charges E {1,148} - {1,145
Yokl 320 {1,010} 1,740 1,050

— ]
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRLUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Reconciliation of net expenditure to nat cash flow from operating activities

2020
EQO0

(148}

T8
(20}
136

10

34

2020
EQOD

{43}
20

128}

2020
E00

537

2024

E0OO
Met sxpenditura for the year (2s per Staterent of Financial Activities) {168}
Adjustments for:
Dapraciation TG
Capilad grants from DFE and other capital Income 21)
Defined benefit pension scheme coat less condributions payable 185
Definad benelit persion scheme finance cost 159
{Increasaj/decrease in debtors [6a}
Increase in creditors 53
loss on dispodais 3
Mat cash provided by operaling activities a2

R

Cash flows from investing activities

H021

£000
Furchase of tangible fixed assals (a1}
Capital grants from DIE Group 21
Mot cazh used in investing activities (10

—— N

Analysis of cash and cash eguivalonts

2021

EQOO
Cazh n hand and at bank T8
Total cash and cash agquivalents 719

@37
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September Al 31 Auguse
2080 Cash flows 021
£000 E0D0 £ooo
Cagh at bank and in hand 83T a2 Pk
837 82 Tig

——— I ————— |

Pengion commitments

The Trusts employees belong o two principal pengion schemes: the Teachers' Fension Scheme
England and Walas (TPS) for academic and rélaled staff: and the Local Govemnmment Pengion Scheme
(LGPS) for non-leaching staff, which is managed by Tyna and Wear and Teesside Pengion Funds, Both
are mulfi-emplayer defmed benafil schemes

The peansion costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of indspendent gualfied actuaries Tha
latest achsarial veluation of the TPS reiated 1o the penod ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS

redated 1o the period ended 31 March 2018,

Cantributions amounting 1o £38,000 were payabis 1o the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020 - £35.000)
and are incheded within creditors

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

Tha Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, coniributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teschars' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 Membership is automatic for full-timss tR@ChErs in
academizs All teachers have the option to opt-cut of the TPS following enscimant

The TPS is an unfundad scheme lo which bath the member and employer makes coninbutions. as a
parcontage of salary - these conlributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and otler pension

panafits are paid by public funds provided by Pariiament,
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HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranies)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Pension commitments (continuad)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Gevernment Actuary, using normal actuarfal principles, conducts & formal actuasial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cosl Cap) Direclions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review s to spacify the level of fulune
contribulions. Actusral scheme valuations are depandent on assumplions about the value of future costs
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest adluanal valustion of the TPS was carried oul a3 at

71 March 2018, The valualion repor was published by the Depariment for Education on 5 March 2019,

The koy alements of the valuatan and subsaguent congultation ane:

«  employer contribution rates set at 23.88% of pansionable pay (ncluding a 0.08% administration
lavy)

" jodail achame liabdibes (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future berefils] For
ssnice to the affsctive date of £2 18,100 million and notional assets (astimated future contributions
logether with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £198 100 milion, giving a
notional past sensce deficit of £22,000 million

" the SCAPE mate, sat by HMT, is used to determing the notonal investrment return. The cuirent
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 7% in excess of earnings, The rate of real earnings growth is assumed Lo be 2.7%. Tha
assumead nomenal rate of return including eamings growth s 4.45%.

The next valuation resull is due to be implementad from 1 April 2023,
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted 1o £234 000 (2020 - £213,000).

Under the definiions set out in FRS 102, the TPS s an unfunded mult-employer pension scheme. The
Trust has accounted for ds contributions to the schame as i il wase a defined contribution schemea. The
Trust kas set out above the information available on the schemse,

Lacal Government Panglon Schama

The LGPS is 8 funded defned benefit pension schemes. with the asseis hald in separale lrusiee
adminstared funds. The total contribution made for the year anded 31 August 2020 was £118.000 (2020
£105,0005, of which employers contributions lotalled EBB.000 (2020 - £76.000) and ermployees’
contributions 1otalled £33,000 (2020 - £28,000). The agread condribution rates for fulure years are 17.5%
for erployvers and 5.5% - 12.5% for employeass

As deserbed in note 110 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of ihe Trusi, who wen fhe
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employeas who
were eligibla o, and o, join the Scheme in the year. The obfigaton in respect of amployees who
\ransferred of conversion represents their cumuiative sandice at both the predecessor school and the
Trust al the balance sheet date.

Parllameant has agreed, al the request of the Secrotary of State for Educaton, to a guarantes thal, o {he

event of academy closure, cutstanding Local Gavernment Pension Scheme liabiities would be met by tha
Department for Education. The guarantea camea into force on 16 July 2013
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MORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2021

Pangion commitments (continued)
Principal actuarial assumplions
Teasside Pension Fund
2021 2020
T T
Rate al increase in salares 3.6 3.2
Rate of increase for pansions in paymentflabon 2.8 2.2
Digcount rabe Tor scheme liabilitins 1.7 1.7
irflation assumption (GPI) 26 2.2
Cammutaton of pensians o lump sums &0.00 BO.CO
o —
The curent martslity assumptions include sufficent allowance for fulure mprovements in migatality rabes.
The assumed ife expactations on retirement age 65 are:
2021 2020
fears Yaars
Fetirning today
Mabes 21.49 21.8
Females 23.6 2.5
Retiring in 20 yéars
Mabz=a 233 233
Females 25,4 253

Tyna and Whear Penszion Fund

2021 2020

% "

Rate of increass in salanes 4.1 3.7
Rate of increass for pensions in paymentinflation 26 22
[scourd rate for scheme kabilites 1.7 L
Inflaticn assumption {CF1) 28 22
Commutation of pensions to [ufmp Sums T5.00 75.00

The current morality assumptions include sufficient allowance for fulure Improvements in mortality rates.
Tha assumad [de expoctations an retiremant age 55 are

20214 2020
ears YRArs
Retinng today
Males 218 218
Females 23,1 5.0
Retiring in 20 years
Males i 235
Females 268 6.4
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MORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Ponsion commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Schame labiliies would have been affected by changes in assumplions as follows:

Duscount rate #0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Maortalty assumgtion - 1 year increass
Martality assumplion - 1 year decreasa
CPI rate +0_1%

CP| rate ~0. 1%

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

The Trust's share of the assats in the scheme was

Equibes

Gowernment bands
Corporate bonds

Broparty

Cash and other Egquid assels
Other assels

Total market value of assels

The aciusl retum on scheme assets was £290 000 (2020 - £160_.0007

The amounts recogrised in the Statemant of Financial Activities are as follows:

Curran| service cosl
interes! income
interas| cost

Total amaunt recognisad in the Statement of Financial Activities

201 2020
£000 ECOn
(102) [T8)
105 a3
{123} {81}
125 e
Fidid i)
(87) (85)
——— ———— ]
2021 2020
£000 EQQQ
1,157 B70
£ 22
238 214
141 126
2] T4
15e 116
1,614 1,421
2021 2020
E000 E000
{281} (211}
25 29
(44} {39}
(300} 221}
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NORTHERH LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A& Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
Panslon eaommitments [continued)

Changes in the presant value of the defined benefit chligations wers as follows:

2021 2020
E000 EQOD
At 1 September 2020 2 569 2.051
Currant service ¢! 281 211
Inierast cost 44 9
Employee contrioutions 33 29
Actmrial lnsses 364 248
Benafits paid (18) &
At 31 August 2021 3,271 2,588
- —_—
Changes in tha Fair value of the Trust's share of schame assets were as follows:
2021 202D
EOQD £000
At 1 September 2020 1421 1.485
Interest incomd 25 Fit)
Aciuarial gainailosses) 265 {188}
Employer contnbutions BA 76
Employes conlrbutions 13 24
Benelits paid (18] (&)
Al 31 August 2021 1,814 1,421

Operating loase commitmeants

Al 31 August 2021 the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease paymants under non-
cancellable oparating kases as follows:

a0 2020

E0O0D EDDD

Amounts due within one year 5 g
Amounts dug in two and five years 2

T B

———

Mambaers' liabllity

Each member of the charlable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound uD while halshe i 8 member, or within ohe year after ha/she ceases to ba a
membar such amount as may be required, not axceading £10 for the debts and labllites contracled
bafore he/ahe ceasas to be a member
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Retatad party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trus! and the composition of the Board of Directors being drawn from local
public and prvate sector organisations. Iransactons may lake place with organisations i which the
directors have an interesl. All fransactions involving such erganisations ars conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all rangactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and ebtaining thair approval where requined and with the Trust's financisl
regulations and mormal procuremsnt procaduras relating to connected and related parly transactons.

Jacksons Commercial & Private Lew — a company n which P Clark s @ pariner.

« The Trust purchased HR and employment advice from Jacksons Cormmeical and Private Law
totalling £4,500 (2020. £5,600) during the period. The amounl outstanding at 3 August 2021 was
£l (2020: Enil)

s The Trust made T purchase at ams' length following = competitive tendering exerc=se in
accordance with its fnancial regulations, which Mr Clark neither parficipated in, nor influsnced

«  In entaring into the transaction the Trust has complied with the requiraments of the
Academies Financial Handbook 2020

« The slement above £2 500 has been provided "al no more than cost’ and Jacksons Cammarcial and
Private Law Fimm has
provided a statement of Bssurance confirming this

In entaring inta these transactions, the Trust has compled with the rogquirenents of ihe Academies
Financial Handbook 2020.
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Teaching school trading account

Incame
Other income

IneCniming
Total income

Expenditure
Direct expenditure
[erect staff costs
Ctfher axpanditura

Cther staff cosls
Cithar suppor costs

Total sther expendiure

Total expenditure

2021
£004a

8o

51

1T
12

28

Surplus from all sources
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021

2021
E£000

a0

2020
£000

2020
£009
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